
 

Page 1 of 4 

  City of Gardner, Massachusetts 
Office of the City Council 

~~~~~~~ 
CALENDAR FOR THE MEETING 

of 
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 7, 2022 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER 
7:30 P.M. 

 
 

ORDER OF BUSINESS  
 
 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. CALL OF THE ROLL OF COUNCILLORS 
 
III. OPENING PRAYER 
 
IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
V. ANNOUNCEMENT OF OPEN MEETING RECORDINGS 
 

Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open session of a meeting, or may transmit the meeting through any medium, subject to reasonable 
requirements of the chair as to the number, placement and operation of equipment used so as not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting.  Any person 
intending to make such recording shall notify the Chair forthwith.  All documents and exhibits used or referenced at the meeting must be submitted in 
duplicate to the City Clerk, as they become part of the Meeting Minutes. 

 
VI. READING OF MINUTES OF PRIOR MEETING(S) 
  
 July 5, 2022, Regular Meeting 
 
VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

VIII. COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR  
 

ORDERS 
10815 – An Order Authorizing $2,015.00 Payment of Prior Year Human Resources 

Operating Expenditure. (Finance Committee) 
 
10816 – An Order Appropriating $130,819.00 from Free Cash to Stabilization. 

(Finance Committee) 
 
10817 – An Order Appropriating $26,164.00 from Free Cash to Other Post 

Employment Benefits Liability Trust Fund (OPEB). (Finance Committee) 
 
10818 – An Order Appropriating $300,000.00 from Free Cash to Department of Public 

Works – Road Resurfacing Expense Account. (Finance Committee) 
 

 



 

Page 2 of 4 

10819 – An Order Appropriating $200,000.00 from Free Cash to Stabilization. 
(Finance Committee) 

 
10820 – An Order Appropriating $35,000.00 from Free Cash to School Improvement 

Project Account. (Finance Committee) 
 
10821 – An Order Appropriating $35,000.00 from Free Cash to City Capital Project – 

Visitor’s Center Revitalization. (Finance Committee) 
 
10822 – An Order Appropriating $75,000.00 from Free Cash to Landfill Closure 

Expenditures. (Finance Committee) 
 
10823 – An Order Appropriating $72,500.00 from Free Cash to Landfill Repair and 

Maintenance. (Finance Committee) 
 
10824 – An Order Appropriating $5,908.00 from Solid Waste Surplus to Solid Waste 

Trach Receptacles/Minor Equipment. (Finance Committee) 
 
10825 – An Order Appropriating $72,500.00 from Solid Waste Retained Earnings to 

Capped Landfill Repairs. (Finance Committee) 
 
10826 – An Order Appropriating $82,500.00 from Solid Waste Surplus to Landfill 

Repairs and Maintenance. (Finance Committee) 
 

10835 – An Order to Raise and Appropriate $166,127.00 for the Various Departments 
for the Salary and Labor Budget for the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2022, 
to June 30, 2023. (Finance Committee) 

 
10836 – An Order to Raise and Appropriate $84,000.00 for the Various Departments 

for Operating Expenditure Budget for the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2022, 
to June 30, 2023. (Finance Committee) 

 
10837 – A Measure Authorizing $106,594.44 for Prior Year Salary Expenditures. 

(Finance Committee) 
 
COMMUNICATIONS 
10827 – A Notification of SK Pierce Mansion Application for National Register of 

Historic Places. (Welfare Committee) 
 
10828 – A Notification of Certification of Property Values. (Finance Committee) 
 
10829 – A Notification of Certification of New Growth. (Finance Committee) 
 
10832 – A Notification of Additional Staff to Gardner Animal Shelter. (Finance 

Committee) 
 



 

Page 3 of 4 

10833 – A Notification of Certification of Free Cash and Retained Earnings from 
FY2022. (Finance Committee) 

 
10838 – A Notification of Acting Police Appointments and Police Department 

Staffing. (Appointments Committee) 
 
10839 – A Measure Authorizing an Intermunicipal Agreement between City of 

Gardner and Town of Princeton for Veteran’s Services. (Finance Committee) 
 
10840 – A Notification of Recent Grant Awards from the Commonwealth. (Finance 

Committee) 
 
10841 – A Measure Authorizing the FY2022-2023 Community Development Block 

Grant Mini Entitlement Plan. (Finance Committee) 
 

10842 – A Communication from the Mayor Regarding the FY2023 Supplemental 
Budget Proposal. (Finance Committee) 

 
10843 – A Communication from the Mayor Regarding Comments of the Electrical 

Rates.  
 

10844 – A Communication from the Mayor Regarding Comments on the South Main 
Street Bridge. 

 
ORDINANCES 
10834 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 423, 

Entitled “Hackney and Other Carriages.” (Safety Committee) 
 

APPOINTMENTS 
10830 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Nicholas Maroni, to the 

position of Deputy Chief of Police, of the Gardner Police Department, for 
term expiring October 27, 2025. (Appointments Committee) 

 
10831 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Timothy McGonigal, to 

the position of Constable, for term expiring October 25, 2022. (Confirmation 
Not Required) 

 
IX. PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC.  
  
X.    REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES   
 
 APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE 
 10811 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Joshua Cormier, to the 

position of Director of Purchasing/Civil Enforcement, for term expiring 
October 11, 2025. (In the City Council and Referred to Appointments 
Committee 10/17/2022) 

  



 

Page 4 of 4 

 SAFETY COMMITTEE 
10814 – An Application to Buy & Sell Second Hand Motor Vehicles, Class 2 for 

Sylvester R. Anghuy, located at 146 Sherman Street. (In the City Council and 
Referred to Safety Committee 10/17/2022)  

 
XI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS AND MATTERS FOR RECONSIDERATION 
  

 10798 – A Petition Submitted by PrivateOversight, LLC, for an Ordinance to 
Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675, Entitled “Zoning,” 
per Zoning Act M.G.L. 40A. (In the City Council and Referred to 
Planning Board 9/19/2022; More Time 10/03/2022, 10/17/2022) 

 
 
XII. NEW BUSINESS 
 
XIII. CLOSING PRAYER 
 
XIV. ADJOURNMENT 
  
 

Items listed on the Council Calendar are those reasonably anticipated by the Council President to be discussed at the meeting.  Not all items listed 
may in fact be discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion n to the extent permitted by law. 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JULY 5, 2022 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 1 of 6 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Regular Meeting of the City Council was held in the Council Chambers, Room 219, City Hall, 
on Tuesday evening, July 5, 2022. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

Council President Kazinskas called the meeting to order at 7:30 o’clock p.m.  
 

CALL OF THE ROLL 
 

City Clerk Titi Siriphan called the Roll of Members. Ten (10) Councillors were present 
including Councillor Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Elizabeth Kazinskas, Judy Mack, George Tyros and 
James Walsh. Councillor James Boone was absent. 
 

OPENING PRAYER 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in reciting the Opening Prayer. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in reciting the “Pledge of Allegiance”. 
 

OPEN MEETING RECORDING & PUBLIC RECORDS ANNOUNCEMENT 
 

President Elizabeth Kazinskas announced to the assembly that the Open Meeting Recording 
and Public Records Announcement. Any person may make a video or audio recording of an 
open session of a meeting or may transmit the meeting through any medium subject to 
reasonable requirements of the chair as to the number placement and operation of 
equipment used so as not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting. Any person intending 
to make such recordings shall notify the Chair forthwith. All documents and exhibits used or 
referenced at the meeting must be submitted in duplicate to the chair as they become part of 
the meeting minutes pursuant to General Law Chapter 38 Section 20. 

 
READING & ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES 

 

On a motion by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, it was 
voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Nathan 
Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros, and James Walsh to waive the reading and accept the 
Minutes of May 16, 2022, Regular Meeting, June 6, 2022 Informal Meeting, and June 6, 2022 
Regular Meeting. 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JULY 5, 2022 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 2 of 6 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
APPOINTMENTS 

 
#10735 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, it 
was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Nathan 
Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros, and James Walsh to refer the following appointment to the 
Appointments Committee for further study and report: 
 

A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Lorin Walter to the position of 
permanent Police Sergeant. 

 
 
#10736 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, it 
was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Nathan 
Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros, and James Walsh to refer the following appointment to the 
Appointments Committee for further study and report: 
 

A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Paulette Burns to the position of 
Board of Assessors Member, for term expiring July 1, 2025. 

 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 

ORDINANCES 
 

#10737 
On a motion made by Councillors Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor 
George Tyros, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, 
Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros, and James Walsh to refer the 
following ordinance to the Finance Committee for further study and report: 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER, SECTION 
44 OF CHAPTER 171, ENTITLED “COMPENSATION IN LIEU OF PAID 
HOLIDAYS” 

 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JULY 5, 2022 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 3 of 6 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER THAT: 
 

SECTION 1: Section 44 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled 
“Compensation in Lieu of Paid Holidays,” be amended by deleting subsection A. 

 
SECTION 2: Section 44(B) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled 
“Compensation in Lieu of Paid Holidays: Police Department,” be amended by deleting 
the word “Captain” from the provisions of this section. 

 
SECTION 3: Section 44(B) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled 
“Compensation in Lieu of Paid Holidays: Fire Department,” be amended by deleting 
the word “Lieutenant” from the provisions of this section. 

 
SECTION 4: Section 44(B) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled 
“Compensation in Lieu of Paid Holidays: Fire Department,” be amended by deleting 
the words “and all regular firefighters” from the provisions of this section. 

  
SECTION 5: This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication as required 
by law. 

 
 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
ORDERS 

 
 

#10726 
On a motion made by Councillor James Walsh and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, 
Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros, and James Walsh to approve the 
Order to leave to withdraw: 
 

AN ORDER APPROPRIATING FROM FREE CASH TO THE FIRE DEPARTMENT – 
SALRY EXPENSE ACCOUNT. 
 
ORDERED: That ther be and is hereby appropriated the sum of Sixty-Five Thousand 
Dollars and No Cents ($65,000.00) from Free Cash to the Fire Department – Salary 
Expense Account. 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JULY 5, 2022 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
COMMUNICATIONS 

 
#10738 
On a motion made by Councillors Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor 
James Walsh, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, 
Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros, and James Walsh to place the 
following notice on file: A Notification of the Mass Trails Grant Award. 
 
#10739 
On a motion made by Councillors Aleksander Dernalowicz James Walsh and seconded by 
Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas 
and Councillors Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, 
Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros, and James Walsh to place the 
following notification on file: A Notification of Approval for Vacant Storefront Program 
Participation 
 

PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC. 
 

#10740 
On a motion made by Councillors James Walsh and seconded by Councillor George Tyros, it 
was voted viva voce, (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Nathan 
Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros, and James Walsh to refer the following petition to the 
Public Service Committee for further study and report: A Petition by National Grid and 
Verizon New England, Inc., Keyes Road – To install beginning at a point approximately 700 
feet southeast of the centerline of the intersection of West Street. Relocate Pole #2 across the 
street to accommodate for bridge construction and upgrade to a 45 foot class 2 

 
#10741 
On a motion made by Councillors Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, 
Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros, and James Walsh to refer A Measure 
to Elect a City Treasurer and City Collector of Taxes, effective August 19, 2022 to the 
Finance Committee for further study and report. 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JULY 5, 2022 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 5 of 6 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS AND MATTERS FOR RECONSIDERATION 
 
#10699 
Councillor James Walsh mentioned that he is in support of the 2% cost of living adjustment 
but not in support for the increase for the Assistant City Solicitor and the Human Resource 
Director positions. 
 
On a motion made by Councillor James Walsh and seconded by Councillor Ronald Cormier 
it was voted on call of the roll, ten (10) yeas, President Kazinskas and Councillors Nathan 
Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros, and James Walsh to amend the ordinance for the Human 
Resource Director position to $94,464.00, and the Assistant City Solicitor to $47,896.24. The 
ordinance will have the 2% cost of living adjustment for all positions. 
 
Councillor James Walsh stated that the salary study can be retro pay from fiscal year July 
2022. 
 
Councillor Ronald Cormier spoke in favor of the amendment. He stated that it’s about the 
position not the person. 
 
Councillors George Tyros and Aleksander Dernalowicz also spoke in favor with the amended 
proposal. 
 
On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted on call of the roll, ten (10) yeas, President Kazinskas and 
Councillors Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, 
Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros, and James Walsh to submit the 
following ORDINANCE as AMENDED to Second and Final Printing: An Ordinance to 
Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 171, Thereof, Entitled “Personnel” to 
Change Compensation Schedule Exhibit E. 
 
#10704 
On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern 
it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Nathan 
Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros, and James Walsh to send an ORDINANCE to Amend the 
Code of the City of Gardner by adding a new Chapter Entitled “Litter and Handbills” to 
second and Final Printing. 

  



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JULY 5, 2022 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 6 of 6 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

Councillor Dana Heath would like to thank the Mayor for explaining the tax valuation to the 
public. He also mentioned the food truck festival coming up this Saturday. 
 
Councillor James Walsh appreciated the Mayor’s explanation of the tax rate valuation so that 
they can pass the message onto their constituents. 
 

CLOSING PRAYER 
 

President Elizabeth Kazinskas led the Council in the Closing Prayer. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

On a motion by Councillor Nathan Boudreau and seconded by Councillor Judy Mack, it was 
voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Nathan 
Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to adjourn at 8:19 p.m. 
 
 

Accepted by the City Council:  



10815



AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF PRIOR YEAR OPERATING EXPENDITURE 
 

ORDERED:  To authorize payment of prior year HUMAN RESOURCES operating 

expenditure account for prior year, as follows: 

 

FY2022  HUMAN RESOURCES MEDICAL EXAM EXP $2,015.00  

10815



10815



10815



10816



10816



10816



10816



10816



10817



10817



10817



10817



10817



10818



10818



10818



10818



10818



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10819



10820



10820



10820



10820



10821



10821



10821



10821



10821



10821



10821



10821



10821



10821



10821



10821



10821



10821



10822



10822



10822



10823



10823



10823



10823



10823



10824



10824



10824



10825



10825



10825



10825



10825



10826



10826



10826



10826



10826



10835



10835



10836



10836



10837



10837



10827



10827



10828



10828



10828



10828



10829



10829



10829



10832



10832



10832



10832



10832



10833



10833



10833



10833



10833



10833



10833



10833



10833



10833



10833



10833



10838



10838



10839



10839



10839



10839



10839



10839



10840



10840



10840



10841



10841



10841



10841



10841



10841



10841



10841



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10842



10843



10843



10843



10843



November 1, 2022  
 
Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, Council President  
 And City Councilors  
Gardner City Hall, Rm 121 
95 Pleasant St  
Gardner, MA 01440 
 
RE: Response to New Business Comments Regarding South Main Street Bridge 
 
Dear Madam President and Councilors,  
 
At the October 17, 2022 meeting of the City Council, Councilor James Boone stated the 
following during the “New Business” portion of the meeting: 
 

“Thank you Madam President. A few days ago, I sent an email to the Mayor's 
Office and DPW Director regarding the bridge on South Main Street. We all 
probably received the email wondering what's going on, and I'm wondering 
what's going on, and I haven't got a response so I'm hoping that maybe we 
can get clarification on what's going on that bridge. In fact, Travers Street was 
blocked on West Broadway ,and I went by Knights of Columbus and started 
driving down, and go “oh damn I forgot that bridge is out,” so I'm just looking 
for an update, but I appreciate if I can get a response and a reply as to what 
what is going on, and maybe the entire Council deserves a response, so I 
appreciate that.” (quote from YouTube subtitle transcription). 

 
While I had intended to reply to Councilor Boone via email, as he had originally done, whereas 
the Councilor chose to bring this item up in an open, public forum and whereas the Councilor 
chose to specifically note my response time to the Council, I felt the need to reply to the 
Councilor’s comments in the same manner in which he chose to bring this matter forward. 
Furthermore, since the Councilor stated that this should be an item presented to the full council, 
after speaking about it in an open meeting, I am responding via this method, in order to avoid 
any potential violations of the Open Meeting Law. Lastly, I feel as though this issue and instance 
have made it where I feel compelled to bring up other issues related to how this situation was 
brought forward.  
 
To address the matter regarding the bridge, as has been stated multiple times since the bridge 
was first closed in the Spring of 2017, after it was listed as being in critical failure following its 
mandatory safety and structural inspection. (See Attachment 1). Notice of the closure, along 
with the written recommendation of the City Engineer was then forwarded to the City Council, 
including Councilor Boone, by former Mayor Mark Hawke via email on Wednesday, February 
21, 2018 10:50 AM, with the subject line “South Main Street Bridge Closure.” (See attachments 
2 and 3).  
 

10844



Councilor Boone even responded to this email, asking for a copy of the inspection report and a 
map of the area stating, “Can we get a map of where it is located.  Also the report from Mass 
DOT.” (See attachment 4). The requested items were sent and Councilor Boone responded, 
“Thank you. Didn't even realize there was a bridge there.” (See attachment 5).  
 
That same year, the previous administration sent out a newsletter to residents of the City, which 
included an announcement of the bridge closure. (See attachment 6.)  
 
As you are likely aware, the City and the Commonwealth have very limited jurisdiction over a 
railroad. The Article 1, Section 8, Clause 3 of the Constitution of the United States (more 
commonly referred to as the Interstate Commerce Clause), Chapter 33 of the United States 
Code, the Federal Interstate Commerce Act of 1887, and the Department of Transportation Act 
of 1966 (which created the Federal Railroad Administration) placed full jurisdiction over railroads 
with the Federal Government of the United States.  
 
The issue regarding this structure is that the City owned bridge itself is in such critical condition 
that it no longer meets the safety standards set by both the Federal and Massachusetts 
Departments of Transportation for vehicular traffic. However, there are two separate bridges in 
this location- one owned by the City, and one owned by the Railroad. The City bridge, 
unfortunately, shares an abutment with the railroad bridge, and is mostly contained within the 
railroads right-of-way. The City would need the Railroad’s express, written permission and 
obtain a legally documented construction easement to perform any work on the bridge. The City 
reached out to the railroad shortly after the bridge was closed and was quickly denied any 
access from the railroad for the abutments or their right of way.  
 
The reasoning given by the Railroad for this denial was that in 2015, the Federal Railroad 
Administration issued a mandate to the Railroad that over the course of the subsequent ten (10) 
years, a certain number of at-grade street crossings had to be discontinued, as a result of a 
jump in the number of accidents regarding trains and cars nationwide. As such, since April of 
2015, the Railroad had been requesting permission from the City to discontinue the road in the 
area as a way to comply with that mandate. The City had continuously denied this request, 
however, when the City bridge had to be closed due to its structural instability, and the City then 
needed permission from the Railroad in order to keep the intersection open, the Railroad then 
had the upper hand.  
 
While the City has reached out on multiple occasions since then requesting permission, the 
Railroad has held firm to their denial. Since the City has no jurisdiction over the railroad, the City 
cannot order the railroad to allow the City onto the Railroad’s property in order to make the 
necessary repairs to abutting property owned by the City. 
 
Since the bridge was closed in the Spring of 2017, this item has been discussed at three (3) 
meetings of the Gardner Redevelopment Authority, five (5) meetings of the Gardner Traffic 
Commission, two (2) meetings of the City Council Public Safety Committee, and three (3) 
meetings of the City Council Public Service Committee. Also, during my two years as Mayor, I 

10844



have also discussed this topic in two (2) of my Weekly Mayor’s Update videos. As such, to say 
that the Administration (both mine and the previous administration) have not provided any 
updates regarding this matter is simply false and uninformed.  
 
Furthermore, I also feel compelled to address the way in which this topic was brought forward 
both to my office and at the City Council meeting.     
 
This topic was brought forward after a resident of the City of Clearwater, Florida sent an email to 
several different parties on October 11, 2022 at 10:10am, regarding concerns about the bridge 
closure. (See attachment 7).Councilor Boone responded to this email on October 12, 2022 at 
8:25am, in which he discussed an experience driving in the area stating, “No big deal had to 
turn around.  But I would be interested in and update.” (grammatical error copied directly from 
email) (See attachment 8).  
 
While the Councilor stated that he was interested in receiving an update, there was no direct 
request for information regarding the matter, nor was there an update to give other than what 
had already been provided on several different occasions.  
 
On Friday, October 14, 2022 at 12:15pm, only two (2) days after his first email, Councilor Boone 
sent a rather churlish email stating, “Cat got your tongue?  As a City Councilor I deserve a reply.  
I would think.  In fact the entire council should be updated.” (See attachment 9).  
 
During my tenure in office, I feel as though I have been extremely differential and cooperative to 
the City Council in providing information about topics regarding the City and actions taken by 
the Administration. On several occasions, I have shared information with the City Council, 
simply for the sake of keeping everyone on the same page, whether there was action required 
to be taken by the City Council or not.  
 
Furthermore, if an elected official cares enough about a topic to be as passionate about it as 
Councilor Boone is claiming to be, one would expect they would explore every avenue possible 
to obtain such information. Following a records request search, even though Councilor Boone’s 
initial inquiry was made before the Council’s agenda was posted for the October 17, 2022 
meeting, at no point did Councilor Boone reach out to the Council President and request that 
the topic be placed on the Council Calendar for the meeting. For a Councilor to state that this 
topic was important enough to be presented to the entire Council, Councilor Boone certainly did 
not make an effort to accomplish his own goal.  Including when a resident and registered voter 
of the City of Clearwater, Florida requested that Councilor Boone bring this item up under new 
business in an email sent on Wednesday, October 12, 2022 at 9:59am. (See Attachment 10).  
 
Furthermore, Councilor Boone, as a member of the Public Safety Committee of the City Council 
which oversees operations of the Police Department and has a representative to the City’s 
Traffic Commission has not once brought up this topic for discussion in those forums.  
 

10844



In addition to the above, the Charter of the City of Gardner has a method for which the Council 
can formally request information of the Administration, as follows:  
  

SECTION 25. The city council may at any time request from the mayor specific 
information upon any municipal matter within its jurisdiction, and may request 
his presence to answer written questions relating thereto at a meeting to be 
held not earlier than one week after the date of the receipt by the mayor of 
said questions. The mayor shall personally, or through a head of a department 
or a member of a board, attend such meeting and publicly answer all such 
questions. The person so attending shall not be obliged to answer questions 
relating to any other matter… The council, or any committee thereof duly 
authorized by the council so to do, may investigate the financial transactions 
of any office or department of the city government, and the official acts and 
conduct of any official, and, by similar investigations, may secure information 
upon any matter.    

 
As previously stated, in the last two (2) years since I was first sworn into office, I have had no 
qualms in not requiring this process and have simply provided the Council with information as 
things come up. However, while I have respected the Council’s role in the governance of the 
City and have worked to build a collaborative working relationship between the branches of the 
City’s Government, I do ask that the Councilor respect the fact that the Mayor’s Office is a highly 
trafficked office, busy with overseeing the full operations of the City that it may take more than a 
mere two days to be able to respond to an email. Anyone who has truly paid attention to the 
amount of progress that has been made recently in the City and the project planned for the 
future can see that there is a lot of work being done to move this City forward, which takes time. 
While things may not take the full week’s notice, as outlined in the Charter above, the duties of 
the Office of Mayor cannot always be dropped to respond to an email right away.  
 
This is also not the first time that Councilor Boone has taken a rude/condescending tone in a 
public email correspondence. (See Attachments 11-17).  
 
Nor is this the first time that Councilor Boone has made statements publicly without actually 
doing the research behind the topic to make an informed and accurate statement (Attachment 
18-20), or asked someone else to conduct the research on the topic for him. (See Attachments 
21-32) 
 
Lastly, there have been other Councilors who have asked how this situation was faring in the 
past, particularly Councilor Dernalowicz, but whereas this was brought up during New Business 
and Councilor Dernalowicz had already had is time, he was unable to speak on this matter with 
the information he had already obtained on his own.  
 
As I have stated before, my goal has always been to work with the City Council in a respectful, 
collaborative, and cooperative manner, as we share the same goal of advancing our City to a 
better future. I will continue to work and perform my duties as Mayor in this manner, and 

10844



respectfully ask that other officials in the City return the same level of professional respect in 
return.  
 
Respectfully,  
 
 
Michael J. Nicholson  
Mayor, City of Gardner  
 
 
 
 
 
 

10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10844



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10834



10830



10831



10811



10814



10814



10798



10798



10798



10798



TO THE HONOURABLE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER 

 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

The undersigned PrivateOversight LLC Petition your Honorable Body to: 

Amend the Gardner Zoning Map by changing the zoning district designation for the following listed parcels, lying 

at the westerly end of West Broadway to the Templeton municipal boundary, from the Commercial 2 Zoning 

District and the Rural Residential 2 Zoning District to the General Residential 3 Zoning District, as follows: 

    

Assessor’s 

Map/Lot/Block 

Property Address Current 

Zoning District 

Proposed Zoning 

District 

    

H17-72-1 West Broadway COM2 GR3 

H17-7-1 West Broadway COM2 & RR2 GR3 

H17-12-2 West Broadway COM2 & RR2 GR3 

H17-13-9 Airport Road RR2 GR3 

H17-7-8 1022 West Broadway COM2 GR3 

H17-7-7 9 Deer Hill Road COM2 GR3 

H17-7-6 17 Deer Hill Road COM2 GR3 

H17-7-5 25 Deer Hill Road COM2 GR3 

H17-12-9 33 Deer Hill Road COM2 & RR2 GR3 

H17-12-4 41 Deer Hill Road COM2 & RR2 GR3 

H17-7-4 30 Deer Hill Road COM2 & RR2 GR3 

H17-7-3 22 Deer Hill Road COM2 GR3 

H17-7-2 14 Deer Hill Road COM2 GR3 

H17-7-10 6 Deer Hill Road COM2 GR3 

H17-3-9 985 West Broadway COM2 GR3 

H17-8-13A 950 West Broadway COM2 GR3 

H17-8-16 957 West Broadway COM2 GR3 

H17-8-13 940 West Broadway RR2 GR3 

H17-8-15 945 West Broadway COM2 GR3 

H17-3-1 935 West Broadway COM2 GR3 

 

The proposed amendment to the zoning map will bring the zoning district for these parcels into better conformity 

with their current actual use for residential purposes, while still allowing for the possibility of home occupations 

accessory to the primary residential use.  This will also eliminate parcels falling across two zones, and 

nonconformities in the neighborhood, and is in furtherance of declared purpose of the Zoning Ordinance “to 

encourage the most appropriate use of land throughout the City.” 

No new lot boundaries are created by this proposed amendment, merely the reclassification of existing parcels. 

The Petitioner PrivateOversight, LLC, by Joanne M. Tavano, Member/Manager, is the owner of Parcels H17-7-

1, H17-12-2 and H17-13-9, which are parcels to be affected by the zoning map amendment pursuant to M.G.L. 

c. 40A §5, and is therefore eligible to Petition for this zoning map amendment. 

 

 

10798



AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE BOUNDARIES OF 
THE DISTRICTS OF THE CITY WITH REGULATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS TO BE 
ENFORCED AND TO BE KNOWN AS THE ZONING ORDINANCE. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS: 

 

That “An Ordinance Establishing the Boundaries of the Districts of the City with Regulations and 
Restrictions to be enforced and to be known as the Zoning Ordinance” (Compilation of Ordinances 
No. 62) adopted by the City Council December 9, 1970 and amended several times thereafter be 
further amended as follows: 

 

Designate parcels H-17-72-1 (a non-listed use), H17-7-1, H17-12-2, H17-13-9 (currently vacant 
lots) H17-7-8, H12-7-7, H17-7-6, H17-7-5, H17-12-9, H17-12-4, H17-7-4, H17-7-3, H17-7-2, 
H17-7-10, H17-3-9, H17-8-13A, H17-8-16, H17-8-13, H17-8-15, and H17-3-1 (currently single 
family homes) as General Residential 3 (GR3) pursuant to Article III, §675-310 Types of districts 
and Article XI, §675-1160 Amendments.. Said General Residential 3 (GR3) shall be shown on the 
Zoning Map of Gardner, Massachusetts.  

10798



Parcels to be Rezoned 
Petition 10798- Zoning Map Amendment COM2/RR2 TO GR3 

Conformity of affected parcels if the proposed zoning map amendment is passed. 

 

No. Parcel ID Use Property Address Conformity Pre-
Change 

Conformity 
Post Change 

1 H-17-72-
1 

Not Listed West Broadway UNKNOWN UNKNOWN 

2 H17-7-1 Vacant-
Proposed 
Multifamily 

0 West Broadway NP SP 

3 H17-12-2 Vacant- 
Proposed 
Multifamily 

0 West Broadway NP SP 

4 H17-13-9 Vacant- 
Proposed 
Multifamily 

0 Airport Road NP SP 

5 H17-7-8 Single Family 1022 West Broadway  Pre-existing, non-
conforming  

Conforming 

6 H17-7-7 Single Family 9 Deer Hill Road Variance  Conforming 

7 H17-7-6 Single Family 17 Deer Hill Road Variance  Conforming 

8 H17-7-5 Single Family 25 Deer Hill Road Variance  Conforming 

9 H17-12-9 Single Family 33 Deer Hill Road Variance  Conforming 

10 H17-12-4 Single Family 41 Deer Hill Road Variance  Conforming 

11 H17-7-4 Single Family 30 Deer Hill Road Variance  Conforming 

12 H17-7-3 Single Family 22 Deer Hill Road Variance  Conforming 

13 H17-7-2 Single Family 14 Deer Hill Road Variance  Conforming 

14 H17-7-10 Single Family 6 Deer Hill Road Variance  Conforming 

15 H17-3-9 Single Family 985 West Broadway Pre-existing, non-
conforming  

Conforming 

16 H17-8-
13A 

Single Family 950 West Broadway Pre-existing, non-
conforming  

Conforming 

17 H17-8-16 Single Family 957 West Broadway Pre-existing, non-
conforming  

Conforming 

18 H17-8-13 Single Family 940 West Broadway Pre-existing, non-
conforming  

Conforming 

19 H17-8-15 Single Family 945 West Broadway Pre-existing, non-
conforming  

Conforming 

20 H17-3-1 Single Family 935 West Broadway Pre-existing, non-
conforming  

Conforming 

10798



CURRENT ZONING MAP 

 

COMMERCIAL 2 DISTRICT        INDUSTRIAL 2 DISTRICT 

RURAL RESIDENTIAL 2 DISTRICT 

 

10798



Proposed Zoning Map Amendment 

Parcels to be designated as General Residential 3 Zoning District 

  

 

  

 

 

10798



Gardner- Conformity Parcels

City of Gardner GIS

Areas

Override 1

Override 2

Override 3

Parcels (2020)

7/16/2021, 1:11:01 PM
0 0.08 0.160.04 mi

0 0.1 0.20.05 km

1:4,514

Online Web Mapping Application
MAP FOR REFERENCE ONLY

21
3
4
5

6

7

8
9

10
11

12
13

14 15
16

17 18 19

20

21
22

23 24 25

26 27

28

LOCUS

10798



Parcel No. Address Owner Use Conforming?
1 1022 W. Broadway Charles Lemos Single Family NO
2 9 Deer Hill Road Bryan & Nicole Keith Single Family NO
3 17 Deer Hill Road Thomas & Dianne Lupaczyk Single Family NO
4 25 Deer Hill Road Linda Daniels Single Family NO
5 33 Deer Hill Road Becky Cooper-Glenz Single Family NO

6
41 Deer Hill Road

Cornerstone Church of the
 Assemblies of God

Rectory
NO

7 30 Deer Hill Road Jeanne Kia Single Family NO

8
22 Deer Hill Road

Louise, Daniel,
 & Christopher Caissie

Single Family
NO

9 14 Deer Hill Road Monique Aviles Single Family NO
10 6 Deer Hill Road Thurston Silva Single Family NO

11
950 W. Broadway

Deborah G. Leabman 
Revocable Trust

Single Family
NO

12 985 W. Broadway Joseph Kiarie Single Family NO
13 957 W. Broadway Barbara & Lee Forgues Single Family NO
14 945 W. Broadway Mark & Susan Harty Single Family NO
15 935 W. Broadway N/A Single Family? NO
16 925 W. Broadway Global Investments 1, Inc. Office YES
17 899 W. Broadway City of Gardner Animal Control YES
18 871 W. Broadway Christine Caron, Trustee Gym YES
19 855 W. Broadway D & A Holdings, Inc. Self Storage NO
20 838 W. Broadway Grove Street Realty Trust Daycare YES
21 23 Airport Road Lithuanian Outing Assoc., Inc. Fraternal Org. YES
22 800 W. Broadway Eric Hill Auto Repair YES
23 795 W. Broadway Anthony Manca, Trustee Truck Terminal NO
24 771 W. Broadway Anthony Manca, Trustee Warehouse NO
25 765 W. Broadway Garrick Contract Carriers, Inc. Truck Terminal NO
26 766 W. Broadway Charles Manca Warehouse NO
27 758 W. Broadway Charles Bachelder Three Family NO
28 750 W. Broadway City Electric Supply Company Retail< 10,000 SF YES

TABLE OF NONCONFORMING USES

ON MAP: GREEN= CONFORMING; RED=NONCONFORMING

10798



F:\P2022\0691\A10\Deliverables\Report\20220691.A10_WestBroadwayTrafficReviewSJS.docx 

August 12, 2022 

 

Joanne Tavano 

Privateoversight, LLC 

21 B West Hill Dr 

Westminster, MA 01473 

 

Re: Traffic Review 

      West Broadway Condos, Gardner, MA 

      Fuss & O’Neill Reference No. 20220691.A10 

 

Dear Ms. Tavano,  

 

Fuss & O’Neill, Inc. (F&O) has completed a traffic review for the proposed condominium 

development on West Broadway in the Town of Gardner, MA. The following sections are a 

summary of the traffic related findings.  

 

Existing Traffic Conditions 

 

A site visit was conducted on Tuesday, July 27, 2022, to observe the existing traffic conditions in 

the vicinity of the site. The observation was performed during the anticipated AM peak hours, 

between 8:15 AM and 9:15 AM. Over the course of this hour 265 vehicles were recorded, with 110 

going westbound and 155 going eastbound. Photos 1 and 2 show the existing conditions at the site 

and depict the existing visibility in both roadway directions from the proposed driveway.  

 

 
Photo 1: West Broadway at Proposed Driveway (looking east) 

1550 Main Street 

Suite 400 

 Springfield, MA 

01103 

t 413.452.0445 

800.286.2469 

f 413.846.0497 

 

www.fando.com 

 

California 

Connecticut 

Maine 

Massachusetts 

New Hampshire 

Rhode Island 

Vermont 

10798



Joanne Tavano 

August 12, 2022 

Page 2 

 

F:\P2021\0848\A10\Deliverables\Report\20210848.A10 West Broadway Traffic Review  

 
Photo 2: West Broadway at Proposed Driveway (looking west) 

 

Speed data adjacent to the proposed site was gathered using radar. The 85th percentile of speeds 

during this one-hour interval are 43 mph westbound and 49 mph eastbound with a combined 85th 

percentile speed of 46 mph. The roadway posted speed limit is 40 mph at the Templeton town line.  

 

Intersection sight distance (ISD) and stopping sight distance (SSD) were measured and evaluated at 

the proposed site driveway location in accordance with criteria set forth by the American 

Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO). Intersection sight distance 

accounts for the perception time and reaction time needed to identify an appropriate gap in 

oncoming traffic that allows the vehicle to safely turn onto a roadway and accelerate without undue 

speed differential conflicts with vehicles already on the roadway, measured using a line of sight 

across the corners of the intersection. The target used for sighting the proposed driveway was 

placed in the grassed area approximately 16 feet from the shoulder of the road to represent the 

location of the driver’s eye. 

 

Stopping sight distance ensures that vehicles will have sufficient visibility to safely stop for another 

stopped vehicle on the roadway particularly at an intersection where the situation is likely to occur, 

measured using a line of sight along the major roadway centerline. Stopping sight distance is 

generally considered the absolute minimum visibility criteria, while intersection sight distance is 

recommended where feasible and readily achievable.  

 

The SSD on the westbound approach of West Broadway was measured as being greater than 900 

feet. The road follows a near straight trajectory for over 900 feet heading towards the intersection 

10798



Joanne Tavano 

August 12, 2022 

Page 3 

 

F:\P2021\0848\A10\Deliverables\Report\20210848.A10 West Broadway Traffic Review  

with no visual obstructions. The recommended SSD was calculated to be 350 feet based on the 

prevailing operating speed of 46 mph on a 5% grade. The existing SSD meets the requirement. 

 

The SSD on the eastbound approach of West Broadway was measured as 400 feet. The vertical and 

horizontal curvature of the roadway impede vision of the intersection. The recommended SSD was 

calculated to be 295 feet based on the prevailing operating speed of 46 mph on 2% grade. The 

existing SSD meets the requirement.  

 

The ISD was measured for the westbound approach of West Broadway (looking east from 

proposed site). An available ISD of 525 feet was measured. The recommended ISD was calculated 

to be 510 feet based off Case B1, Left Turn from stop on minor street, which uses a time gap of 7.5 

seconds for passenger cars. The obstruction was trees and vegetation along the south side of West 

Broadway. The recommended ISD was calculated using the prevailing operating speed of 46 mph. 

The available distance meets the recommended distance. Table 1 summarizes the sight distance 

analysis. 

 

The ISD was measured for the eastbound approach of West Broadway (looking west from 

proposed site driveway). An available ISD of 444 feet was measured. The recommended ISD was 

calculated to be 440 feet based off Case B2: Right Turn from stop on Minor Street which uses a time gap 

of 6.5 seconds for passenger cars. The obstruction was the vertical curvature of West Broadway 

heading towards the intersection and the tree line that spans the southern portion of the West 

Broadway. The recommended ISD was calculated using the prevailing operating speed of 46 mph. 

The available distance meets the recommended distance. Table 1 summarizes the sight distance 

analysis.  

 

 
 

 

Recommended Existing Recommended Existing

West Broadway at Proposed Driveway

Westbound 46 mph 350 ft > 900 ft 510 ft 525 ft

Eastbound 46 mph 385 ft 400 ft 440 ft 444 ft

Source: American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO). 2011. A Policy 

on Geometric Design of  Highways and Streets

TABLE 1

SIGHT DISTANCE MEASUREMENTS

Observed 

Speed

Stopping Sight Distance Intersection Sight Distance

Notes:

Location

Direction 

of Travel

West Broaway Condominiums - West Broadway, Gardner, MA

10798



Joanne Tavano 

August 12, 2022 

Page 4 

 

F:\P2021\0848\A10\Deliverables\Report\20210848.A10 West Broadway Traffic Review  

Safety Analysis 

 

State published vehicle crash history between 2018 and 2021, the most recent verified available 

years, was analyzed on West Broadway adjacent to the proposed site. Only one crash was reported 

over the 3-year period, indicating no predominant safety deficiency or concern. 

 

Site Generated Traffic 

 

The expected site generated traffic volume was calculated using existing empirical data from the 

Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Web-based App. This publication is 

an industry-accepted resource for determining trip generation. 

 

Trip generation for the proposed development was estimated based on a fully occupied facility. The 

land use chosen for this analysis is LUC 215: Single-Family Attached Housing as this category most 

closely matches the proposed use of the site. A total of 43 occupied dwelling units was used based 

on information from the applicant. Based on ITE Fitted Curve Equations, the proposed 

development is estimated to produce 25 trips during the weekday morning peak hour and 29 trips 

will be generated during the weekday afternoon peak hour. All of these trips will be new trips added 

to adjacent roadways. Table 2 presents the daily and peak hour trip generation estimates. 

 

 

 
 

 

Recommendations 

 

Fuss & O’Neill recommends installing standard 30”x30” W2-2 intersection 

advanced warning signs 175’ in advance of the site driveway on the eastbound 

approach to inform drivers of the driveway location. 

 

 

 

Enter

(vpd)

Exit

(vpd)

Total

(vpd)

6 19 25

18 11 29

155 155 310

PM Peak Hour of Generator

Weekday 24-Hour

Table 2

West Broadway Condominiums

Estimated Average Vehicle Trip Ends Based on Fully Occupied Facility

LUC: 215 - Single-Family Attached Housing

(43 housing units)

AM Peak Hour of Generator

10798



Joanne Tavano 

August 12, 2022 

Page 5 

 

F:\P2021\0848\A10\Deliverables\Report\20210848.A10 West Broadway Traffic Review  

 

Based on the field observations, site trip estimates and results relating to traffic safety, and with 

implementation of the recommended improvements, it is the professional opinion of Fuss & 

O'Neill, Inc. that the proposed West Broadway Condos will not have a significant impact to 

vehicular movements at the proposed driveway nor exacerbate any pre-existing safety concerns. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Stephen J. Savaria, PE, PTOE 

Senior Project Manager 

10798


	7-5-2022 Regular Meeting Minutes.pdf
	COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR
	APPOINTMENTS
	#10726
	COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR
	COMMUNICATIONS
	#10738
	On a motion made by Councillors Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz,...
	#10739
	PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC.
	#10740
	On a motion made by Councillors James Walsh and seconded by Councillor George Tyros, it was voted viva voce, (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern...
	#10741
	On a motion made by Councillors Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, ...
	UNFINISHED BUSINESS AND MATTERS FOR RECONSIDERATION
	#10704
	On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Ha...




